
January 10, 2017

Public Service Commission

ATTN: David Spenard
P.O. Box 615

Frankfort, KY 40602

RE: Martin County Water District
PSC Case No. 2016-00142

Brian Cumbo
ArrORNEY AT LAW

86 W. Main St., Suite 100
P.O. Box 1844

Inez, KY 41224
(606) 298-0428

FAX: (606) 298-0316
cumbolaw@Gumbolaw.com

ADMITTED IN KYANDWV

RECEIVED

JAN 12 2017

Public Service

Commission

Dear Mr. Spenard:

Enclosed please find an original and six (6) copies ofMartin County Water District's Witness and
Exhibit List regarding the above captioned matter.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Very truly yours.

BRIAN CUMBO

BC/ld

Enclosure

cc: Martin County Water District
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In the Matter of:

INVESTIGATION OF THE OPERATING )
CAPACITY OF MARTIN COUNTY WATER )
DISTRICT PURSUANT TO KRS 278.280 )

CASE NO. 20I6-00I42

WITNESS & EXIBIT LIST

JAN 12 W
Pubric'Service-
Commission

Comes the Martin County Water District (District), by counsel, and hereby state that they

will call the following witnesses and introduce the following exhibits at the hearing in this matter.

WITNESS LIST

1. Bill Harvey

2. Joe Hammond

^ 3. Joe Bums

4. Kelly Callaham

5. Linda Sumpter

6. The District reserves the right to amend this Witness List as necessary.

EXHIBIT LIST

1. All exhibits previously filed with the Commission.

2. The audit for the calendar years 2013,2014 and 2015.
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3. The mapping and leak detection records of Kentucky Rural Water Association.

4. Fire department water use records.

5. The District reserves the right to amend this Exhibit List as necessary.

^

BRIAN CUMBO

COUNSEL FOR MARTIN COUNTY

WATER DISTRICT

P.O. BOX 1844

INEZ, KY 41224
TELEPHONE: (606) 298-0428
TELECOPIER: (606)298-0316
EMAIL: cumbolaw@cumbolaw.com

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

This will certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing was mailed, overnight mail, postage
paid, on this the lO"' dayof January, 2017, to the following:

Public Service Commission

ATTN: David Spenard
P.O. Box 615

Frankfort, KY 40602

BRIAN CUMBO
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White & Associates, PSC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1407 Lexington Road
Richmond, Kentucky 40475

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Coimnissioners of the Martin County Water District
Inez, Kentucky

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the enterprise fund of the
Martin County Water District (District), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District's basic financial statements as listed in the table ofcontents.

Management's Responsibilityfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in aecordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that axe
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidenee about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for om audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the enterprise fund of the District, as of
December 31, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position, and where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part
of the financial statements is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who consider it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on
the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by GovernmentAuditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 30, 2016, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

White & Associates, PSC
Richmond, Kentucky
September 30, 2016



Martin County Water District
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2013

2013

ASSETS:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 100,010
Accounts receivable

Customer, net 292,103
Other, net 7,366

Inventory 25,818
Prepaid expenses 22,649
Accrued utility revenues 263,723

Total currentassets 711,669

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 202,473
Capital assets not being depreciated 272,214
Capital assets, net ofaccumulated depreciation 21,084,894

Total noncurrent assets 21,559,581
$ 22,271,251

LIABILiTIES:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 537,111
Accrued liabilities:

Payroll taxes 3,751
Other 78,175
Interest 51,809

Customer deposits 126,506
Current portion of long-term debt:

Bonds 117,698

Note 45,632

Capital lease 10,000
Total current liabilities 970,683

Noncurrent liabilities:

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt:
Bonds 2,008,100
Note 702,322

Capital lease 136,222
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,846,644
Total liabilities 3,817,327

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 18,337,133
Restricted for:

Reserves 202,473

Unrestricted (85,683)
Total net position 18,453,923
Total liabilities and net position $ 22,271,251

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Martin County Water District
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES and CHANGES in NET POSITION

For ttie Year Ended December 31, 2013

OPERATING REVENUES:

Water sales:

Residential

Commercial

Unmetered

Other sales:

Public authorities

Penalties

Other

Vendors

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased water

Chemicals

Materials &supplies
Contractual services

Rental

Transportation
Insurance

Bad debt

Regulatory assess fees
Depreciation
Miscellaneous

Total operating expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings on investments
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS

Tap fees
Capital contributions

Total contributions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, BEGINNING

NET POSITION, ENDING

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2013

1,774,056
436,351
. 1,449

58,581

79,303

2,613

296

15,251

2,367,900

568,421

323,638
343,391
121,022

287,660

152,687

233,560
64,015

59,147

61,999

4,050

781,395

45,508

3,046,495

(678,595)

246

(119,033)
(118,788)

(797,382)

19,781

612,102

631,882

(165,500)

18,619,424

18,453,923



Martin County Water District
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and other sources $ 2,367,900
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (1,274,723)
Cash payments for employees and benefits (892,060)

Net cash provided(used) by operating activities 201,117

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases and construction ofcapital assets 11,879
Principal payments on long-term debt (154,614)
Interest paid on long-term debt (119,033)

Netcash provided (used)bycapital and related financing activities (261,768)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income received 246

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 246

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (60,405)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 362,889

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 302,484

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:

Operating income(loss) $ (678,595)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided

(used) by operating activities;
Depreciation 781,395
Accounts receivable 19,143
Inventory 988
Prepaid expenses (619)
Accrued revenues (177,251)
Accounts payable 261,604
Accrued liabilities (14,996)
Customer deposits 9,448

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 201,117~

Noncash item:

Capital contributions were $631,882.

Interest expense:
Interest expense was $119,033.

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

5



Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended December 31,2013

NOTE 1 - Reporting entity and significant accounting policies

(a) Description ofthe reporting entity

The Martin County Water District (District) was authorized by action of the Martin
County Fiscal Court. The Martin County Water District Side A was formed
December 1, 1962. On August 31, 1996 the Fiscal Court, with approval of the
Kentucky Public Service Commission, merged Section A and B. The District is a
Special Purpose Government Entity (SPGE) recognized by the KentuckyDepartment
of Local Government. The District is governedby the Martin CountyUtility Board,
whichis comprised of Commissioners appointed by the Martin CountyFiscal Court.

The District, for financial purposes, includesthe transactions relevantto the operation
of the Martin County Water District. The financial statements presented herein do
not include other agencies which have been formed under applicable state laws or
separate and distinct units of government apart firom the Martin County Water
District.

(b) Basis ofaccounting

The District operates and reports as an enterprise fund utilizing the accrual method of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized
when incurred. Operating revenues, such as charges for services, result fi-om
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, taxes, and investment earnings
result fi-om non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
are needed.

(c) Applicable accounting standards

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) establishes accounting and
financial reporting standards for financial statements of state and local governments.
The Districthas elected to follow all pronoimcements of the GASB.

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with an enterprise fund's principal
ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District's enterprise fund
are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital
assets.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses.

(d) Investments

Investments are reported in the accompanying statement of net position at fair value,
except for certificates of deposit and investment contracts that are reported at cost
because they are not transferable and they have terms that are not affected by changes
in market interest rates.

Changes in fair value that occur during a calendar year are recognized as investment
income reported for that year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes
in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of
investments.

In accordance with the District's investment policy, the District may invest in the
following:

Certificates ofDeposit
U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds
Local Agency Investment Fund
Money Market Mutual Funds

Currently, the District has no investments.

(e) Statement ofcashflows

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined
to be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash and investments, and highly
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less fi:om the date of purchase.
For financial statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents are shown as
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents.

(f) Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent amounts held in trust at the bank and
are set aside for bond sinking, operation and depreciation funds as required by the
bond ordinance.

(g) Capital assets

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for
additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their
fair market values as of the date received.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

All reported capital assets are depreciated with the exception of land and construction
in progress. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the
related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over
the following useful lives:

Description Estimated Lives

Land improvements 10-50 years
Buildings and improvements 10-25 years
Technology equipment 5-20 years
Equipment 5-50 years

(h) Employee leave benefits

The District's policy on vacation shall accrue at the rate of eighty (80) hours per year
for one (1) to five (5) years of full time employment, henceforth employees' may earn
an additional eight (8) hours per year up to a maximum of one hundred and twenty
(120) hours. Maximum accrual of each employee is one hundred and sixty (160)
hours. No monetary value is given to the accrual ofvacation.

The District's employees' shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours per
month to a maximum of four hundred and eighty (480) hours. No monetary value is
given to the accrual of sick leave.

(i) Use ofestimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the District's
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ fiom

those estimates.

(j) Inventory

The District maintains a detailed inventory of supplies needed to maintain the water
infrastructure. Inventory is recorded at historical cost and expensed when used.

(k) Prepaid expenses

Payments made by the District that benefit periods beyond December 3U' are
classified as prepaid expenses. A current asset is recorded at the time ofpurchase and
an expense is made per the eonsumption method. The prepayment of expenses is for
the numerous insurances required on behalf of the District's employees' and its
infiastructure.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(1) Accrued utility revenues
/

Accrued utility revenues are the acerual of water sales at December 31^* that has not
been billed to customers.

{ra)Accounts receivable, net

The Distriet accormts for the billings to customers as Customer accounts receivable.
The amounts determined not to be collectable have been deducted.

(n) Capital contributions

Capital contributions include the amounts paid by state and local governments that
arise from contributions of capital assets, or from grants or outside contributions of
resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

(o) Reservesfor netposition

The amount restrieted in net position is the amount that has been set aside for
payments of long-term debt. The restricted amount equals the restricted cash and
cash equivalents as reported in the statement of net position.

(p) Net investment in capital assets

Net investment in capital assets is the net amount of the eapital assets less the
amounts payable for long-term debt financing those capital assets.

(q) Customer deposits

Deposits required by the District for each customer to receive services. The deposits
are maintained by the Distriet and returned when services are no longer used or other
qualifying event by the District's policy.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 - Budgetary data

The District's Board of Commissioners receives and approves an annual budget from
management each calendar year fulfilling the requirement to prepare an aimual
budget as required by all SPGE's for the Kentucky Department of Local Government.

NOTE 3 - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2013 are classified in the
accompanjdng financial statements as follows:

Statement ofNet Position:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 100,010
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 202.473

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 302.483

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2013 consist of the following:

Cash on hand $ 900

Deposits with financial institutions 301.583

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 302.483

Custodial risk

Custodial risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not
be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able
to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession
of a another party. As of June 30'*', the District's deposits with financial institutions
are non-interest bearing, and have a limited insurance coverage with the federal
deposit insurance corporation up to $250,000. As of December 31, 2013, the District
deposits with financial institutions exceeded the federal depository insurance limits
by $110,085. The difference has been covered by securities pledged by the financial
institution holding the deposits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 4 - Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the calendar year ended December 31, 2013, was as follows:

12/31/2012 Additions Deductions 12/31/2013

Land . $ 209,714 $ 5,000 $ - $ 214,714
Construction in progress - 57,500 57,500
Structures 500,264 500,264
Collecting & Impounding Reservoirs 288,203 288,203
Lakes, rivers and intakes 1,021,403 1,021,403
Pumping Equip 305,429 3,458 308,887

Water Treatment Equipment 4,811,040 1,930 4,812,970
Distribution reservoir & standpipes 3,683,916 387,585 4,071,502

Transmission & Distribution mains 19,890,585 169,490 20,060,075

Meters & meter installation 483,949 .483,949
Hydrants 2,969 2,969
Other plant & misc equip 854,900 7,064 861,964
Office Furniture & equipment 172,251 3,000 175,251

Transportation equipment 324,570 324,570
Tools 29,134 400 29,534

Lab Equipment 14,403 14,403

Power Operated equipment 43,193 43,193

Communication equipment 16,897 16,897

Total at historical cost $ 32,652,818 $ 635,428 $ - $ 33,288,246

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Structures $ 87,709 $ 10,183 $ $ 97,892
Collecting &.Impounding Reservoirs 62,404 1,555 63,959

Lakes, rivers and intakes 504,239 20,429 524,668

Pumping Equip 236,829 31,813 268,642

Water Treatment Equipment 1,199,067 92,240 1,291,307
Distribution reservor & standpipes 777,409 76,983 854,392

Transmission & Distribution mains 6,808,880 494,899 7,303,779

Meters & meter installation 171,146 13,937 185,083

Hydrants 1,754 89 li843

Other plant & misc equip 738,046 15,848 753,894

Office Furniture & equipment 169,453 2,464 171,917

Transportation equipment 291,871 19,484 311,355

Tools 29,134 33 29,167

Lab Equipment 14,401 14,401

Power Operated equipment 43,192 43,192

Communication equipment 14,209 1,438 15,647

Total accumulated depreciation $ 11,149,743 $ 781,395 $ - $ 11,931,138

Capital Assets-net $ 21,503,075 $ (145,967) $ - $ 21,357,108

Depreciation expense was $781,395 for the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 5 - Long-term debt

Long-term debt activity for the calendar year ended December 31, 2013, was as
follows:

Note payable

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as a note payable
represents the District's future obligations to make payments related to a loan
obtained fi-om the Kentucky Injfrastructure Authority (KIA) to provide water to
customers in the Martin County area.

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy debt
service. The original amount of the outstanding note, maturity date, interest rate, and
outstanding balance at December 31, 2013 is summarized below:

Note Issue

KIA

Original Maturity Interest

Amount Date Rates

2012

Debt

Outstanding Additions Retirements

2013

Debt

Outstanding

$ 1,329,826 2027 3% $ 792,240 $ 44,285 $ 747,955

The current amount due for the note payable as of December 31, 2013, is $45,632.
The collateral for the note is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future note
payable obHgation is as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 45,632 $ 21,815 $ 67,447

2015 47,020 20,427 67,447

2016 • 48,450 18,997 67,447

2017 49,924 17,523 67,447

2018 51,443 16,004 67,447

2019-2023 281,657 55,577 337,235

2024-2027 223,828 12,237 236,064

$ 747,955 $ 162,579 $ 910,534

Capital lease

The amount shown in the accompanying financial statements as capital lease
represents the District's purchase of vehicles and equipment by obtaining funding
firom the Kentucky Association ofCounties (KACO).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy the debt
service. The original amount of outstanding capital lease, maturity date, interest rate,
and outstanding balance, at December 31, 2013 is summarized below:

Captal Lease Issue

KACO Leasing Trust

Original

Amount

Maturity

Date

interest

Rates

2012 Lease

Outstanding Additions Retirements

2013 Lease

Outstanding

$200,000 2025 1.85% $ 156,222 10,000 146,222

The current amount due for the capital lease as of December 31, 2013, is $10,000. The
collateral for the lease is service revenue. Pajnnents accrue monthly. Future capital
lease obligations are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 10,000 $ 6,099 $ 16,099

2015 10,000 5,669 15,669

2016 10,000 5,264 15,264
2017 10,000 4,834 14,834
2018 10,000 4,431 14,431

2019-2023 70,000 14,645 84,645

2024-2025 26,222 1,562 27,784

$ 146,222 $ 42,503 $ 188,725

Bonds payable

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as bonds payable
represents the District's initiation and improvements of its water system by obtaining
funding from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Division of Rural
Development (RD), and additionally, the loan obtained financing from GMAC.

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy the debt
service. The original amount of outstanding bonds, maturity date, interest rate, and
outstanding balance, at December 31, 2013 is summarized below:

2012 2013

Original Maturity Interest Debt Debt

Bond Issues Amount Date Rates Outstanding Additions Retirements Outstanding

GMAC $ 560,000 2015 5% $ 122,000 $ $ 40,902 $ 81,098

RD 1 554,000 2036 4.5% 444,500 10,500 434,000

RD5 600,000 2040 4.5% 523,400 9,700 513,700

RD8 910,000 2047 4.375% 879,000 11,000 868,000

RD 10 $ 241,000 2047 4.375% 232,000 3,000 229,000

$ 2,200,900 $ $ 75,102 $ 2,125,798
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The current amount due for the bonds as of December 31, 2013, is $117,698. The
collateral for the bonds is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future bond
obligations are as follows;

Principal Interest Interest

2014 $ 117,698 $ 99,189 $ 216,887

2015 37,100 93,487 130,587
2016 39,500 91,818 131,318

2017 41,100 90,041 . 131,141

2018 43,500 88,188 131,688

2019-2023 244,000 410,134 654,134

2024-2028 304,000 349,938 653,938

2029-2033 377,200 275,292 652,492

2034-2038 403,000 184,114 587,114

2039-2043 293,700 102,313 396,013

2044-2047 225,000 38,100 263,100

$ 2,125,798 $ 1,822,612 $ 3,948,411

NOTE 6 - Pension plan

County Employees Retirement Svstem

Employees who work an average of 100 hours per month participate in the County
Employees Retirement System of Kentucky (CERS), a cost sharing, multiple-
employer public employees' retirement system created by and operating under
Kentucky Law.

The County Employees Retirement System covers substantially all regular full-time
employees of the District. The plan provides for retirement, disability and death
benefits. CERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained in
writing from the County Employee Retirement System, 1260 Louisville Road,
Perimeter Park West, and Frankfort, Kentucky, 40601.

For participating employees who established an account prior to July 1, 2008, they
contribute 5% of the creditable compensation. For employees hired after July 1,
2008, they contribute 6% of the creditable compensation. Employer contribution
rates are intended to fund the normal cost on a current basis plus one percent (1%) of
unfunded past service costs per aimum plus interest at the actuarial assumed rate. The
Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement Systems determines such contribution
rates each biennium. The current District contribution rate for employees is 19.55%.
The District contributed $96,856 of the employee's compensation during the calendar
year ended December 31, 2013.
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.NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The District's required contributions (both withholding and match) for pension
obligations to CERS for the calendar years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and
2011 were $122,085, $104,718 and $94,145 respectively.

NOTE 7 - Change in accounting policy

During the calendar year ending December 31, 2013, management adopted the
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63. This statement created
the statement ofnet position which replaced the previous statement ofnet assets.

NOTE 8 - Risk management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to illegal acts, torts,
theft/damage/ destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and
natural disasters. To obtain insurance for workers' compensation, errors and
omission, and general liability coverage, the District purchased commercial insurance
coverage.

NOTE 9 - Subsequent events

The District has evaluated subsequent events through September 30, 2016, the date of
the financial statements were available to be issued.
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White & Associates, PSC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1407 Lexington Road
Richmond, Kentucky 40475

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District
Inez, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standard issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of the enterprise fund of Martin County Water District (District),
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing om:
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of perfonning their assigned
fimctions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
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we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances ofnoncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

White & Associates, PSC
Richmond, Kentucky
September 30, 2016
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MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

Year Ended December 31, 2013

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

What type of report was issued for the financial statements?

Were there significant deficiencies in internal control disclosed?
If so, was any significant deficiencies material (GAGAS)?

Was any material noncompliance reported (GAGAS)?

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There were no findings.

18

Unmodified

None reported
N/A

No



MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year Ended December 31, 2013

There were no findings firom the prior year.
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September 30, 2016

White & Associates, PSC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1407 Lexington Road
Richmond, Kentucky 40475

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water Distriet
Inez, Kentucky

We have audited the financial statements of the enterprise fimd of the Martin County
Water District for the year ended December 31, 2013. Professional standards require that
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted
auditing standards and. Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated May 19, 2016. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects ofAccounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.
The significant accounting policies used by Martin County Water District are described
in Note 1 to the financial statements. As described in Note 7 to the financial statements,
the District changed accounting policies related to financial statement presentation by

.adopting Statement of Governmental Accounting Standards GASB Statement No. 63, in
the calendar year ended December 31, 2013. We noted no transactions entered into by the
governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in
the proper period.

Aecoimting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and
current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the enterprise fund was the useful lives
and residual values of capital assets:

Management's estimate of the useful lives and residual values of capital assets is
based on historical trends. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the useful lives and residual values of capital assets in determining that it
is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosmes are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely missta,tements
identified during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them
to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such
misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit
procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the
aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting,
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated September 30, 2016.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accoimtants about auditing
and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's
financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To

our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally diseuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting
principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the
governmental unit's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course
of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Commissioners and the Martin
County Fiscal Court and management of the Martin County Water District and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

White & Associates, PSC
Richmond, Kentucky
September 30, 2016
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White & Associates, PSC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1407 Lexington Road
Richmond, Kentucky 40475

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District
Inez, Kentucky

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the enterprise fund of the
Martin County Water District (District), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibilityfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
firee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on om
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the enterprise fund of the District, as of
December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position, and where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part
of the financial statements is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who consider it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on
the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordanee with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 30, 2016, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
eontrol over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

White & Associates, PSC
Richmond, Kentucky
September 30, 2016



Martin County Water District
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2014

2014

ASSETS:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 82,395
Accounts receivable

Customer, net 251,056
Other, net 3,227

Inventory 26,272
Prepaid expenses 18,990
Accrued utility revenues 243,652

Total current assets 625,593

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 193,932
Capital assets not being depreciated 214,714
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 21,445,957

Total noncurrent assets 21,854,603
$ 22,480,196

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 347,722
Accrued liabilities:

Payroll taxes 3,910
Other 59,545
Interest 4,977

Customer deposits 133,349
Current portion of long-term debt:

Bonds

Note 47,020

Capital lease 10,000
Total current liabilities. 606,523

Noncurrent liabilities:

Noncurrent portion of long-term debt:
Bonds 1,971,000

Note 655,302

Capital lease , 126,222
. Total noncurrent liabilities 2,752,524
Total liabilities 3,359,047

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 18,851,127
Restricted for:

Reserves 193,932

Unrestricted 76,091
Total net position 19,121,149
Total liabilities and net position $ 22,480,196

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Martin County Water District
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES and CHANGES in NET POSITiON

For the Year Ended December 31. 2014

OPERATING REVENUES:

Water sales:

Residential

Commercial

Unmetered

Other sales:

Public authorities

Penalties

Other

Vendors

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased water

Chemicals

Materials & supplies
Contractual services

Rental

Transportation
Insurance

Bad debt

Regulatory assess fees
Depreciation
Miscellaneous

Total operating expenses

OPERATIONS INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings on investments
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS

Tap fees
Contributions

Total contributions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, BEGINNING

NET POSITION, ENDING

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2014

1,581,512

400,136

452

51,121
. 75,242

141,095

347

15,006.

2,264,912

533,566

279,131

334,837

146,849
210,528

137,059
11,864

68,800

59,449

52,402

4,214

771,868

53,427

2,663,994

(399,082)

257

(114,714)
(114,456)

(513,538)

15,914

1,164,850

1,180,764

667,226

18,453,923

19,121,149



Martin County Water District
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

2014

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and other sources $ 2,264,912
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (1,258,817)
Cash payments for employees and benefits (812,697)

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities , 193,398

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities;
Purchases and construction of capital assets 105,333
Principal payments on long-term debt (210,431)
interest paid on long-term debt (114,714)

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (219,811)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment-income received 257

Net cash provided (used) by investingactivities 257

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (26,156)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 302,484

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 276,328

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ (399,082)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided

(used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 771,868
Accounts receivable 45,185

Inventory (454)
Prepaid expenses 3,659
Accrued revenues 20,071
Accounts payable (189,389)
Accrued liabilities (65,303)
Customer deposits 6,842

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 193,398

Noncash items:

Capital contributions in the amount of $1,180,764.

Interest expense:
Interest expense for the year is $114,714.

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Martin County Water District
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES and CHANGES in NET POSITION

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

OPERATING REVENUES;

Water sales:

Residential

Commercial

Unmetered

Other sales:

Public authorities

Penalties

Other

Vendors

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased water

Chemicals

Materials & supplies
Contractual services

Rental

Transportation
Insurance

Bad debt

.Regulatory assess fees
Depreciation
Miscellaneous

Total operating expenses

operations INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings on investments
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS

Tap fees
Capital contributions

Total contributions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, BEGINNING

NET POSITION, ENDING

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

4

2014

1,581,512

400,136

452

51,121

75,242

141,095

347

15,006

2,264,912

533,566

•279,131

334,837

146,849
210,528

137,059

11,864
68,800

59,449

52,402

4,214

771,868

53,427

2,663,994

(399,082)

257

(114,714)
(114,456)

(513,538)

15,914 .

1,164,850

1,180,764

667,226

18,453,923

19,121,149



Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Year ended December 31,2014

NOTE 1 - Reporting entity and significant accounting policies

(a) Description ofthe reporting entity

The Martin County Water District (District) was authorized by action of the Martin
County Fiscal Court. The Martin County Water District Side A was formed
December 1, 1962. On August 31, 1996 the Fiscal Court, with approval of the
Kentucky Public Service Commission, merged Section A and B. The District is a
Special Purpose Government Entity (SPGE) recognized by the Kentucky Department
of Local Government. The District is governed by the Martin County Utility Board,
which is comprised of Commissioners appointed by the Martin County Fiscal Court.

The District, for financial purposes, includes the transactions relevant to the operation
of the Martin County Water District. The financial statements presented herein do
not include other agencies which have been formed under applicable state laws or
separate and distinct units of government apart fi'om the Martin County Water
District.

(b) Basis ofaccounting

The District operates and reports as an enterprise fund utilizing the accrual method of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized
when incurred. Operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, taxes, and investment earnings
result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
are needed.

(c) Applicable accounting standards .

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) establishes accoimting and
financial reporting standards for financial statements of state and local governments.
The District has elected to follow all pronouncements of the GASB.

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses fi'om non-operating
items. Operatingrevenues and expenses generally result fiom pro-viding services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with an enterprise fund's principal
ongoing operations. The prineipal operating revenues of the District's enterprise
funds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

(d) Investments

Investments are reported in the accompanying statement of net position at fair value,
except for certificates of deposit and investment contracts that are reported at cost
because they are not transferable and they have terms that are not affected by changes
in market interest rates.

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment
income reported for that year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes
in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of
investments.

In accordance -with the District's investment policy, the District may invest in the
following:

Certificates of Deposit
U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds
Local Agency Investment Fund
Money Market Mutual Funds

Currently, the District has no investments.

(e) Statement ofcashflows

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined
to be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash and cash equivalents, and highly
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less firom the date of purchase.
For financial statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents are shown as
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents. Currently, the
District has no investments.

(f) Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent amounts held in trust at the bank and
are set aside for bond sinking, operation and depreciation funds as required by the
bond ordinance..

(g) Capital assets

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for
additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their
fair market values as of the date received.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

All reported capital assets are depreciated with the exception of land and construction
in progress. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the
related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over
the following useful lives:

Description Estimated Lives

Land improvements 10-50 years
Buildings and improvements 10-25 years
Technology equipment 5-20 years
Equipment 5-50 years

(h) Employee leave benefits

The District's policy on vacation shall accrue at the rate of eighty (80) hours per year
for one (1) to five (5) years of full time employment, henceforth employees' may earn
an additional eight (8) hours per year up to a maximum of one hundred and twenty
(120) hours. Maximum accrual of each employee is one hundred and sixty (160)
hours. No monetary value is given to the accrual for vacation.

The District's employees' shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours per
month to a maximum of four hundred and eighty (480) hours. No monetary value is
given to the accrual of sick leave.

(i) Use ofestimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the District's •
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from

those estimates.

(j) Inventory

The District maintains a detailed inventory of supplies needed to maintain the water
infrastructure. Inventory is recorded at historical cost and expensed when used.

(k) Prepaid expenses

Payments made by the District that benefit periods beyond December 3U' are
classifiedas prepaid expenses. A current asset is recorded at the time ofpurchase and
an expense is made per the consumption method. The prepayment of expenses is for
the numerous insurances required on behalf of the District's employees' and its
infrastructure.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(1) Accrued utility revenues

Accrued utility revenues are the accrual of water sales at December 31®' that has not
been billed to customers.

{m)Accounts receivable, net

The District accounts for the billings to customers as Customer accounts receivable
less the amounts determined not to be collectable.

(n) Capital contributions

Capital contributions include the amounts paid by state and local governments that
arise from contributions of capital assets, or from grants or outside contributions of
resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

(o) Reservesfor netposition

The amount restricted in net position is the amount that has been set aside for
payments of long-term debt. The restricted amount equals the restricted cash and
cash equivalents as reported in the statement ofnet position.

(p) Net investment in capital assets

Net investment in capital assets is the net amount of the capital assets less the
amounts payable for long-term debt financing those eapital assets.

(q) Customer deposits

Deposits required by the District for each customer to receive services. The deposits
are maintained by the District and returned when services are no longer used or other
qualifying event by the District's policy.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 2 - Budgetary data

The District's Board of Commissioners receives and approves ari annual budget from
management each calendar year fulfilling the requirement to prepare an annual
budget as required by all SPGE's for the Kentucky Department of Local Government.

NOTE 3 - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2014 are classified in the
accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement ofNet Position:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 82,395
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 193.932

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 276.327

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2014 consist of the following:

Cash on hand $ 900

Deposits with financial institutions 275.427

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 275.327

Custodial risk

Custodial risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not
be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able
to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession
of a another party. As of June 30^, the District's deposits with financial institutions
are non-interest bearing, and have a limited insurance coverage with the federal
deposit insurance corporationup to $250,000. As of December 31, 2014, the District
deposits with financial institutions exceeded the federal depository insurance limits
by $128,877. The differencehas been covered by securities pledged by the financial
institution holding the deposits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 4 - Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the calendar year ended December 31, 2014, was as follows:

12/31/2013 Additions Deductions 12/31/2014

Land $ 214,714 $ - $ - $ 214,714

Construction in progress 57,500 57,500 -

Structures 500,264 500,264

Collecting & Impounding Reservoirs 288,203 288,203

Lakes, rivers and intakes 1,021,403 1,132,350 2,153,753

Pumping Equip • 308,887 581 309,468

Water Treatment Equipment 4,812,970 4,812,970

Distribution reservor & standpipes 4,071,502 4,071,502

Transmission & Distribution mains 20,060,075 20,060,075

Meters & meter installation 483,949 483,949

Hydrants 2,969 2,969

Other plant & misc equip 861,964 861,964

Office Furniture & equipment 175,251 175,251

Transportation equipment 324,570 324,570

Tools 29,534 29,534

Lab Equipment 14,403 14,403

Power Operated equipment 43,193 43,193

Communication equipment 16,897 16,897

al at historical cost $ 33,288,246 $ 1,132,931 $ 57,500 $ 34,363,677

Less; Accumulated depreciation

Structures $ 97,892 $ 10,183 $ $ 108,075

Collecting & Impounding Reservoirs 63,959 1,555 65,514

Lakes, rivers and intakes 524,668 29,865 554,533

Pumping Equip 268,642 21,725 290,367

Water Treatment Equipment 1,291,307 92,253 1,383,560

Distribution reservoir & standpipes 854,392 81,505 935,897

Transmission & Distribution mains 7,303,779 494,624 7,798,403

Meters & meter installation 185,083 14,118 199,201

Hydrants 1,843 89 1,932

Other plant & misc equip 753,894 16,256 770,150

Office Furniture & equipment 171,917 1,402 173,319

Transportation equipment 311,355 7,314 318,669

Tools 29,167 80 29,247

Lab Equipment 14,401 -
14,401

Power Operated equipment 43,192 -

43,192

Communication equipment 15,647 899 • 16,546

il accumulated depreciation $ 11,931,138 $ 771,868 $ - $ 12,703,006

Capital Assets-net $ 21,357,108 $ 361,063 $ 57,500 $ 21,660,671

Depreciation expense was $771,868 for the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NOTE 5 - Long-term debt

Long-term debt activity for the calendar year ended December 31, 2014, was as
follows:

Note payable

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as a note payable
represents the District's future obligations to make payments related to a loan
obtained from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA) to provide water to
customers in the Martin County area.

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy debt
service. The original amount of the outstanding note, maturity date, interest rate, and
outstanding balance at December 31, 2014 is summarized below:

Note Issue

Original

Amount

Maturity

Date

Interest

Rates

3%

2013

Debt

Outstanding

$ 747,955

Additions Retirements

$ 45,632 $

2014

Debt

Outstanding

KIA $ 1,329,826 2027

The current amount due for the note payable as of December 31, 2014, is $47,020.
The collateral for the revenue is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future
note payable obligation is as follows:

Principal interest Total

2015 $ 47,020 $ 20,427 $ 67,447

2016 48,450 18,997 67,447

2017 49,924 17,523 67,447

2018 51,443 16,004 67,447

2019 53,007 14,440 67,447

2020-2024 290,224 47,010 337,235

2025-2027 162,253 6,364 168,617

$ 702,322 $ 140,764 $ 843,087

702,322

Capital lease

The amount shown in the accompanying financial statements as capital lease
represents the District's purchase of vehicles and equipment by obtaining funding
firom the Kentucky Association of Counties (KACO).

12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy the debt
service. The original amount of outstanding capital lease, maturity date, interest rate,
and outstanding balance, at December 31, 2014 is summarized below:

Captal Lease Issue

KACO

Original

Amount

IVIaturitv

Date

Interest

Rates

2013 Lease

Outstanding Additions Retirements

$ 10,000

2014 Lease

Outstanding

$200,000 2025 1.85% $ 146,222 136,222

The current amount due for the capital lease as of December 31, 2014, is $10,000. The
collateral for the revenue is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future capital
lease obligations are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2015 $ 10,000 $ 5,669 $ 15,669

2016 10,000 5,264 15,264

2017 10,000 4,834 14,834

2018 10,000 4,431 . 14,431

2019 10,000 4,013 14,013

2020-2024 75,000 11,725 86,725

2025 11,222 468 11,690

$ 136,222 $ 36,404 $ 172,626

Bonds payable

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as bonds payable
represents the District's initiation and improvements of its water system by obtaining
funding from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Division of Rural
Development (RD), and additionally, the loan obtained financing from GMAC.

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy the debt
service. The original amount of outstanding bonds, maturity date, interest rate, and
outstanding balance, at December 31, 2014 is summarized below:

2013 2014

Original Maturity Interest Debt Debt

Bond Issues Amount Date Rates Outstanding Additions Retirements Outstanding

GMAC $ 560,000 2015 5% $ 81,098 $ 81,098 $

RD 1 554,000 2036 4.5% 434,000 23,000 411,000

RD 5 600,000 2040 4.5% 513,700 20,700 493,000

RD8 910,000 2047 4.375% 868,000 24,000 844,000

RD 10 $ 241,000 2047 4.375% 229,000 6,000 223,000

$ 2,125,798 $ $ 154,798 $ 1,971,000

13



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

There is no current amount due for the bonds as of December 31, 2014. The
collateral for the revenue is service revenue. Pajnnents accrue monthly. Future bond
obligations are as follows:

Principal interest Total

2015 $ - $ - $ -

2016 39,500 95,134 134,634

2017 41,100 93,358 134,458

2018 43,500 91,505 135,005

2019 44,600 89,545 134,145

2020-2024 255,600 415,729 671,329

2025-2029 316,900 . 352,832 669,732

2030-2034 393,500 274,890 668,390

2035-2039 391,000 182,557 573,557

2040-2044 273,300 105,674 378,974

2045-2047 172,000 34,843 206,843

$ 1,971,000 $ 1,736,065 $ 3,707,065

NOTE 6 - Pension plan

County Employees Retirement Svstem

Employees who work an average of 100 hours per month participate in the County
Employees Retirement System of Kentucky (CERS), a cost sharing, multiple-
employer public employees' retirement system created by and operating under
Kentucky Law.

The County Employees Retirement System covers substantially all regular full-time
employees of the District. The plan provides for retirement, disability and death
benefits. CERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained in
writing from the County Employee Retirement System, 1260 Louisville Road,
Perimeter Park West, and Frankfort, Kentucky, 40601.

For participating employees who established an accoimt prior to July 1, 2008, they
contribute 5% of the creditable compensation. For employees hired after July 1,
2008, they contribute 6% of the creditable compensation. Employer contribution
rates are intended to fund the normal cost on a current basis plus one percent (1%) of
unfunded past service costs per annum plus interest at the actuarial assumed rate. The
Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement Systems determines such contribution
rates each biennium. The current District contribution rate for employees is 19.55%.
The District contributed $97,386 of the employee's compensation during the calendar
year ended December 31, 2014.

14



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The District's required contributions (both withholding and match) for pension
obligations to CERS for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012
were $124,044, $122,085 and $104,718 respectively.

NOTE 7 - Recently issued accounting standards

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions, will require that unfunded portions of future benefit
obligations shall be recorded as a liability of governments. This pronouncement will
be mandatory for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The District is on a
calendar year but implementation shall take place in 2015 to more clearly align with
the County Retirement System report ending June 30, 2014, the measurement date.
The implementation will have a material effect on the financial statements.

NOTE 8 - Risk management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to illegal acts, torts,
theft/damage/ destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and
natural disasters. To obtain insurance for workers' compensation, errors and
omission, and general liability coverage, the District purchased commercial insurance
coverage.

NOTE 9 - Subsequent events

The District has evaluated subsequent events through September 30, 2016, the date of
the financial statements were available to be issued.

15



White & Associates, PSC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1407 Lexington Road
Richmond, Kentucky 40475

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District
Inez, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standard issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of the enterprise fund of Martin County Water District (District),
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness ofthe District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of fmancial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report „is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

'um

White & Associates, PSC
Richmond, Kentucky
September 30, 2016
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MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

Year Ended December 31, 2014

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

What type ofreport was issued for the financial statements?

Were there significant deficiencies in internal control disclosed?
If so, was any significant deficiencies material (GAGAS)?

Was any material noncompliance reported (GAGAS)?

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There were no fiundings.

18

Unmodified

None reported
N/A

No



MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year Ended December 31, 2014

There were no findings from the prior year.
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White & Associates, PSC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1407 Lexington Road
Richmond, Kentucky 40475

September 30, 2016

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District
Inez, Kentucky

We have audited the financial statements of the enterprise fund of the Martin County
Water District for the year ended December 31, 2014. Professional standards require that
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted
auditing standards and, Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information
related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated May 19, 2016. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects ofAccounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.
The significant accounting policies used hy Martin County Water District are described
in Note 1 to the financial statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the
governmental unit during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in
the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and
current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly fiom those
expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the government wide financial statements
was the useful lives and residual values of capital assets:

Management's estimate of the usefiil lives and residual values of capital assets is
based on historical trends. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the useful lives and residual values of capital assets in determining that it
is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealingwith management in performing and
completing our audit.
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements
identified during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them
to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such
misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit
procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the
aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting,
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the
management representation letter dated September 30, 2016.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult Avith other accountants about auditing
and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's
financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To

our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting
principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the
governmental unit's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course
of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Commisssioners and the
Martin County Fiscal Court and management of the Martin County Water District and is
not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

G)/f^e ^^^oda/e6,
White & Associates, PSC
Richmond, Kentucky
September 30, 2016
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White & Associates, PSC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1407 Lexington Road
Richmond, Kentucky 40475

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District
Inez, Kentucky

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the enterprise fund of the
Martin County Water District (District), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibilityfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of mtemal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fi-aud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are fi-ee from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing proeedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to firaud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's mtemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accoxmting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all rnaterial
respects, the respective financial position of the enterprise fund of the District, as of
December 31, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position, and where



applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 6 to the financial statements, in 2015, the District adopted new
accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica require that the
management's discussion and analysis, schedule of the District's proportionate share of
the net pension liability, and schedule of eontributions information as listed in the table of
contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Management has
omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States ofAmerica requires to be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the financial
statements is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who consider it
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic
financial statements is not affected by this missing information. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the remaining required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods ofpreparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued oiu report dated
September 30, 2016, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
District's internal control over financial reporting and eomplianee.

White & Associates, PSC
Richmond, Kentucky
September 30, 2016



Martin County Water District
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31. 2015

ASSETS:

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Customer, net

Other, net
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Accrued utility revenues

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assts, net of accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

Deferred outflows of resources:

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions

Total Assets

LIABILITIES:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities:

Payroll taxes
Other

Interest

Customer deposits
Current portion of long-term debt:

Bonds

Note

Capital lease
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Net pension liability
Noncurrent portion of long-term debt:

Bonds

Note

Capital lease
Total noncurrent liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Inflow of resources related to current refunding premium
Infolow of resources related to pensions

Total deferred outflows of resourcess

- Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Net Investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Reserves

Unrestricted

Total net position
Total liabilities and net position

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

3

2015

94,137

235,876

12,481

24,067

24,484

258,199
649,244

288,317

234,681

20,790,640

21,313,639

52,952

22,015,835

609,534

2,566

60,923

52,860

139,998

30,000

48,450

• 10,000

954,331

750,000

1,980,000

606,852

116,222

3,453,074

21,893

84,000

105,893

4,513,298

18,233,797

288,317
(1,019,577)
17,502,538

22,015,835



Martin County Water District
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES and CHANGES in NET POSITION

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES:

Water sales:

Residential

Commercial

Industrial

Martin Fire Department
Other

Unmetered

Other sales:

Public authorities

Penalties

Other

Vendors

Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Purchased water

Chemicals

Materials & supplies
Contractual services

Rental

Transportation
Insurance

Bad debt

Regulatory assess fees
Depreciation
Miscellaneous

Total operating expenses

OPERATIONS INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Earnings on investmerits
Amortization of deferrals

Bond issuance costs

Interest expense
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS

Tap fees
Contributions

Total capital contributions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION, BEGINNING
Prior period adjustment

RESTATED NET POSITION, BEGINNING

NET POSITION, ENDING $

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2015

1,624,198

361,679
9,836

2,270

724

304

4,540

74,965

3,073

286

15,621

2,097,496

550,131

249,646

426,314

114,987

223,500

182,458

126,831

66,616

55,847

53,516

4,298

773,303

38,324

2,865,772

(768,276)

284

470

(67,250)
(102,016)
(168,512)

(936,788)

14,352

52,615
66,967

(869,821)

19,121,149
(748,791)

18,372,358

17,502,538



Martin County Water District
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and other sources

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments for employees and benefits

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from capita! and reiated financing activities:
Purchases and construction of capital assets
Principal payments on long-term debt
Bond issuance costs

Amortization of deferral of resources

Interest paid on long-term debt
Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on note

Other cash flows

Investment income received

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Gash and cash equivalents, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used)
by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided

(used) by operating activities:
Depreciation/Amortization
Accounts receivable

Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Accrued revenues

Deferrals

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Customer deposits
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Noncash items:

Capital contributions were $66,967.

Interest expense:
Interest expense was $102,016.

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

5.

2015

2,097,496

(882,331)
(852,729)
362,436

(70,987)
(18,020)
(67,250)

470

(102,016)
(257,802)

0

1,209

284

1,493

106,126

276,328

382,454

(768,276)

773,303

5,926

2,205

(5,495)
(14,546)
52,941

261,812
47,917

6,649

362,436



Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - Reporting entity and significant accounting policies

(a) Description ofthe reporting entity

The Martin County Water District (District) was authorized by action of the Martin
County Fiscal Court. The Martin County Water District Side A was formed
December 1, 1962. On August 31, 1996 the Fiscal Court, with approval of the
Kentucky Public Service Commission, merged Section A and B. The District is a
Special Pmpose Government Entity (SPGE) recognized by the Kentucky Department
of Local Government. The District is governed by the Martin County Utility Board,
which is comprised of Commissioners appointed by the Martin County Fiscal Court.

The District, for financial purposes, includes the transactions relevant to the operation
of the Martin County Water District. The financial statements presented herein do
not include other agencies which have been formed under applicable state laws or
separate and distinct units of government apart from the Martin County Water
District.

(b) Basis ofaccounting

The District operates and reports as an enteiprise utilizing the accrual method of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized
when incurred. Operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from
exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange
transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal
values. Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies, taxes, and investment earnings
result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
are needed.

(c) Applicable accounting standards

The Governmental Aecounting Standards Board (GASB) establishes accounting and
financial reporting standards for financial statements of state and local governments.
The District has elected to follow all pronouncements of the GASB.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with an enterprise fund's principal
ongoing operations. The prineipal operating revenues of the District's enterprise
funds are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital



Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

(d) Investments

Investments are reported in the accompanying statement of net position at fair valne,
except for certificates of deposit and investment contracts that are reported at cost
because they are not transferable and they have terms that are not affected by changes
in market interest rates.

Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as investment
income reported for that year. Investment income includes interest earnings, changes
in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of
investments.

In accordance with the District's investment policy, the District may invest in the
following:

Certificates ofDeposit
U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds
Local Agency Investment Fund
Money Market Mutual Funds

Currently, the District has no investments.

(e) Statement ofcashflows

For the pmposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined
to be cash on hand, demand deposits, restricted cash and cash equivalents, and highly
liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less from the date of purchase.
For financial statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents are shown as
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash and cash equivalents.

(f) Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent amounts held in trust at the bank and
are set aside for bond sinking, operation and depreciation funds as required by the
bond ordinance. Currently, the District has no restricted investments.

(g) Capital assets

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for
additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their
fair market values as of the date received.



Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

All reported capital assets are depreciated with the exception of land and construction
in progress. Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the
related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over
the following useful lives:

Description Estimated Lives

Land improvements 10-50 years
Buildings and improvements 10-25 years
Technology equipment 5-20 years
Equipment 5-50 years

(h) Employee leave benefits

The District's policy on vacation shall accrue at the rate of eighty (80) hours per year
for one (1) to five (5) years of full time employment, henceforth employees' may earn
an additional eight (8) hours per year up to a maximum of one hundred and twenty
(120) hours. Maximum accrual of each employee is one hundred and sixty (160)
hours. No monetary value is given to the accrual of vacation.

The District's employees' shall accrue sick leave at the rate of eight (8) hours per
month to a maximum of four hundred and eighty (480) hours. No monetary value is
given to the accrual of sick leave.

(i) Use ofestimates

The process of preparing financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the District's
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amormts of
assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from

those estimates.

(j) Inventory

The District maintains a detailed inventory of supplies needed to maintain the water
infrastructure. Inventory is recorded at historical cost and expensed when used.

(k) Prepaid expenses

Payments made by the District that benefit periods beyond December 3U' are
classified as prepaid expenses. A current asset is recorded at the time ofpurchase and
an expense is made per the consumption method. The prepayment of expenses is for
the numerous insurances required on behalf of the District's employees' and its
infrastructure.



Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended Deeember 31, 2015

(1) Accrued utility revenues

Accrued utility revenues are the accrual of water sales at December 3F' that has not
been billed to customers.

(jn)Accounts receivable, net

The District accounts for the billings to customers as Customer accounts receivable
less the amounts determined not to be collectable.

(n) Capital contributions

Capital contributions include the amounts paid by state and local governments that
arise from contributions of capital assets, or from grants or outside contributions of
resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

(o) Reservesfor netposition

The amount restricted in net position is the amount that has been set aside for
payments of long-term debt. The restricted amount equals the restricted cash and
cash equivalents as reported in the statement ofnet position.

(p) Net investment in capital assets

Net investment in capital assets is the net amount of the capital assets less the
amounts payable for long-term debt financing those capital assets.

(q) Customer deposits

Deposits required by the District for each customer to receive services. The deposits
are maintained by the District and returned when services are no longer used or other
qualifying event by the District's policy.

(r) Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the County Employees' Retirement
System (CERS) and additions to/deductions from fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the pensions. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments, if any, are
reported at fair value.



Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31,2015

(s) New accountingpronouncements
The District implemented Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting of Pensions" (GASB 68).
GASB 68 replaced the requirements of GASB 27, "Accounting for Pensions by State
and Local Governmental Employers" and GASB 50, "Pension Disclosures", as they
relate to governments that provide pensions through pension plans administered as
trusts or similar arrangements that meet certain criteria. GASB 68 requires
governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize their long-term
obligation for pension benefits as a liability to comprehensively and comparably
measure the annual costs of pension benefits. Cost-sharing governmental employers,
such as the District, are required to report a net pension liability, pension expense and
pension-related assets and liabilities based on their proportionate share of the
collective amounts for all governments in the plan.

NOTE 2 - Budgetary data

The District's Board of Commissioners receives and approves an annual budget from
management each calendar year fulfilling the requirement to prepare an annual
budget as required by all SPGE's for the Kentucky Department of Local Government.

NOTE 3 - Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2015 are classified in the
accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement ofNet Position:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 94,137
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 288.317

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 382.454

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2015 consist of the following:

Cash on hand $ 900

Deposits with financial institutions 381.554

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 382.454

Custodial risk

Custodial risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not
be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
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Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31,2015

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a govemment will not be able
to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession
of a another party. As of June the District's deposits with financial institutions
are non-interest bearing, and have a limited insurance coverage with the federal
deposit insurance corporation up to $250,000. As of December 31, 2015, the District
deposits with financial institutions exceeded the federal depository insurance limits
by $158,045. The difference has been covered by securities jrledged by the financial
institution holding the deposits.
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Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continsied)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 4 - Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the calendar year ended December 31, 2015, was as follows:

12/31/2013 Additions Deductions 12/31/2014

Land $ 214,714 $ - $ - $ 214,714

Construction in progress 57,500 57,500 -

Structures 500,264 500,264

Collecting & Impounding Reservoirs 288,203 288,203

Lakes, rivers and intakes 1,021,403 1,132,350 2,153,753

Pumping Equip 308,887 581 309,468

Water Treatment Equipment 4,812,970 4,812,970

Distribution reservor & standpipes 4,071,502 4,071,502

Transmission & Distribution mains 20,060,075 20,060,075

Meters & meter installation 483,949 483,949

Hydrants 2,969 2,969

Other plant & misc equip 861,964 861,964

Office Furniture & equipment 175,251 175,251

Transportation equipment 324,570 324,570

Tools 29,534 29,534

Lab Equipment 14,403 14,403

Power Operated equipment 43,193 43,193

Communication equipment 16,897 16,897

Total at historical cost $ 33,288,246 $ 1,132,931 $ 57,500 $ 34,363,677

Less: Accumulated depreciation

Structures $ 97,892 $ 10,183 $ $ 108,075

Collecting & Impounding Reservoirs 63,959 1,555 65,514

Lakes, rivers and intakes 524,668 29,865 554,533

Pumping Equip 268,642 21,725 • . 290,367

Water Treatment Equipment 1,291,307 92,253 1,383,560

Distribution reservoir & standpipes 854,392 81,505 935,897

Transmission & Distribution mains 7,303,779 494,624 7,798,403

Meters & meter installation 185,083 14,118 199,201

Hydrants 1,843 89 1,932

Other plant & misc equip 753,894 16,256 770,150

Office Furniture & equipment 171,917 1,402 • 173,319

Transportation equipment 311,355 7,314 318,669

Tools 29,167 80 29,247

Lab Equipment 14,401 -
14,401

Power Operated equipment 43,192
-

43,192

Communication equipment 15,647 899 16,546

Total accumulated depreciation $ 11,931,138 $ 771,868 $ - $ 12,703,006

CapitalAssets-net $ 21,357,108 $ 361,063 $ 57,500 $ 21,660,671

Depreciation expense was $773,303 for the year.
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Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 5 - Long-term debt

Long-term debt activity for the calendar year ended December 31, 2015, was as
follows:

Note payable

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as a note payable
represents the District's future obligations to make payments related to a loan
obtained from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA) to provide water to
customers in the Martin County area.

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy debt
service. The original amount of the outstanding note, maturity date, interest rate, and
outstanding balance at December 31, 2015 is summarized below;

Note Issue

KIA

Original

Amount

Maturity

Date

$ 1,329,826 2027

Interest

Rates

2014

Debt

Outstanding

3% $ 702,323

Additions Retirements

47,020

2015

Debt

Outstanding

$ 655,302

The current amount due for the note payable as of December 31, 2015, is $48,450.
The collateral for the revenue is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future
note payable obligation is as follows:

Princioal Interest Total

2016 $ 48,450 $ 18,997 $ 67,447

2017 49,924 17,523 67,447

2018 51,443 16,004 67,447

2019 53,007 14,440 67,447

2020 54,620 12,827 67,447

2021-2025 299,052 38,183 337,235

2026-2027 98,806 2,364 101,170

$ 655,302 $ 120,338 $ 775,640

Capital lease

The amount shown in the accompanying financial statements as capital lease
represents the District's purchase of vehicles and equipment by obtaining funding
from the Kentucky Association of Counties (KACO).
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Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coiitinued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy the debt
service. The original amount of outstanding capital lease, maturity date, interest rate,
and outstanding balance, at December 31, 2015 is summarized below:

Original Maturity interest 2014 Lease 2015 Lease

Captai Lease Issue Amount Date Rates Outstanding Additions Retirements Outstanding

KACO $ 200,000 2025 1.85% $ 136,222 $ 10,000 $ 126,222

The current amount due for the capital lease as of December 31, 2015, is $10,000. The
collateral for the revenue is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future capital
lease obligations are as follows:

Principal Interest Total

2016 $ 10,000 $ 5,264 $ 15,264

2017 10,000 4,834 14,834

2018 10,000 4,431 14,431

2019 10,000 4,013 14,013

2020 15,000 3,596 18,596

2021-2025 71,222 8,597 79,819

$ 126,222 $ 30,735 $ 156,957

Bonds payable

The amounts shown in the accompanying financial statements as bonds payable
represents the District's initiation and improvements of its water system by obtaining
fimding from the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Division of Rural
Development (RD). The RD loans were refimded on May 12, 2015 from the
Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation Public Projects.

Series 2015E Current Refunding

RD loans of $2,008,100 were refunded on May 12, 2015 by $2,010,000 par amount
public project fund bond from the Kentucky Rural Water Finance Corporation. The
new debt bears interest from 2.1 - 4.1% maturing on February 1, 2044. The net fair
value cash flow savings is $223,252, and the net present value savings of $112,269, a
savings of 4.06%. The District will receive a net future value benefit of $185,746 of
refunding with the new debt a 3.72% savings.

The District is obligated to make payments in amounts sufficient to satisfy the new
debt service. The original amount of outstanding bonds, maturity date, interest rate,
and outstanding balance, at December 31, 2015 is summarized below:
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Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

2014 2015

Original Maturity Interest Debt Debt

Bond Issues . Amount Date Rates Outstandlna Additions Retirements Outstandlna

RD1 $ 554,000 2036 4.5% $ 422,500 $ 422,500 $

RD 5 600,000 2040 4.5% 503,600 503,600 -

RD 8 910,000 2047 4.375% 856,000 856,000 -

RD 10 241,000 2047 4.375% 226,000. 226,000 -

Refunding KRW $ 2,010,000 2045 2.1-4.1% - 2,010,000 2,010,000

$ 2,008,100 $ 2,010,000 $ 2,008,100 $ 2,010,000

The current amount due for the bonds as of December 31, 2015, is $30,000. The

collateral for the revenue is service revenue. Payments accrue monthly. Future bond
obligations are as follows:

PrinciDal Interest Total

2016 $ 30,000 $ 91,300 $ 121,300

2017 50,000 73,974 .123,974

2018 55,000 72,321 127,321

2019 55,000 70,066 125,066

2020 55,000 68,361 123,361

2021-2025 310,000 308,084 618,084

2026-2030 370,000 249,181 619,181

2031-2035 430,000 176,416 606,416

2036-2040 390,000 93,275 483,275

2041-2045 265,000 27,778 292,778

$ 2,010,000 $ 1,230,756 $ 3,240,756

NOTE 6 - Pension Plan

General information about the County Employees Retirement System Non-
Hazardous ("CERS")

Plan description—^Employees whose positions do not require a degree beyond a high
school diploma are covered by the CERS, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan administeredby the Kentucky Retirement System, an agency of
the Commonwealth of Kentucky. Under the provisions of the Kentucky Revised
Statute ("KRS") Section 61.645, the Board of Trustees of the Kentucky Retirement
System administers CERS and has the authority to. establish and amend benefit
provisions. The Kentucky Retirement System issues a publicly available financial
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
CERS. That report may be obtained fi:om http://kvret.kv.gov/.
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Martiii County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Benefits provided—CERS provides retirement, health insurance, death and disability
benefits to Plan employees and beneficiaries. Employees are vested in the plan after
five years' service. For retirement purposes, employees are grouped into three tiers,
based on hire date:

Tier 1 Participation date Before September 1,2008
Unreduced retirement 27 years service or 65 years old
Reduced retirement At least 5 years service and 55 years old

At least 25 years service and any age

Tier 2 Participation date, September 1, 2008 —December 31, 2015
Unreduced retirement At least 5 years service and 65 years old

Or age 57+ and sum of service years plus age equal 87
Reduced retirement At least 10 years service and 60 years old

Tier 3 Participation date AfterDecember 31,2015
Unreduced retirement At least 5 years service and 65 years old

Or age 57+ and sum of service years plus age equal 87
Reduced retirement Not available

Cost of living adjustments are provided at the discretion of the General Assembly.
Retirement is based on a factor of the number of years' service and hire date multiplied
by the average of the highest five years' earnings. Reduced benefits are based on
factors ofboth of these components. Participating employees become eligible to receive
the health insurance benefit after at least 180 months of service. Death benefits are

provided for both death after retirement and death prior to retirement. Death benefits
after retirement are $5,000 in lump sum. Five years' service is required for death
benefits prior to retirement and the employee must have suffered a duty-related death.
The decedent's beneficiary will receive the higher of the normal death benefit and
$10,000 plus 25% of the decedent's monthly final rate of pay and any dependent child
will receive 10% of the decedent's monthly final rate of pay up to 40% for all
dependent children. Five years' service is required for non-service-related disability
benefits.

Contributions—^Required contributions by the employee are based on the tier:

Required contribution
Tier 1 5%

Tier 2 5% + 1% for insurance

Tier 3 5% + 1% for insurance

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
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Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

At December 31, 2015, the District reported a liability for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability for CERS. The amount recognized by the District as its
proportionate share of the net pension liabilityis as follows:

District's proportionate share of CERS's net pension liability $ 750,000.

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date.

The District's proportion of the net pension liability for CERS was based on the
actual liability of the employees and former employees relative to the total liability of
the System as determined by the actuary. At June 30, 2014, the District's proportion
was .023123% (percent).

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of
$85,209 related to CERS. At December 31, 2015, the District reported deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources

Differences between expected and actual $ - $

experience

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments - 84,000

Changes in proportion and differences

between District contributions and proportionate

share of contributions

District contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 52,952 -

52,952 $ 84,000
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Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31,2015

$52,952 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2016. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended 12/31

2016 $ 10,590

2017 10,590

2018 10,590

2019 10,590

2020 10,590

$ 52,952

Actuarial assumptions—;the total pension liability in the June 30, 2014 actuarial
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement:

CERS KTRS

Inflation 3.50% 3.50%

Projected salary inereases 4.50% 4.0-8.2%

Investment rate ofreturn, net of

investment ejqrense & inflation 7.75% 7.50%

For CERS, mortality rates for the period after service retirement are according to the
1983 Group Annuity Mortality Table for all retired employees and beneficiaries as of
June 30, 2006 and the 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table for all other employees.
The Group Annuity Mortality Table set forward five years is used for the period after
disability retirement.

For CERS, the long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the
regular experience studies prepared every five years. The most recent analysis,
performed for the period covering calendar years 2005 through 2008, is outlined in a
report dated August 25, 2009. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-
term rate of return assumption including long-term historical data, estimates inherent
in current market data, and a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate
ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net of investment
expense and inflation) were developed by the investment consultant for each major
asset class. These ranges were combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and then adding expected inflation. The capital market
assumptions developed by the investment consultant are intended for use over a 10-
year horizon and may not be useful in setting the long-term rate of return for funding
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Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmued)

For the Year Ended December 31,2015

pension plans which covers a longer timeframe. The assumption is intended to be a
long-term assumption and is not expected to change absent a significant change in the
asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a fundamental change in the
market that alters expected returns in future years.

Discount rate—For CERS, the discoimt rate used to measure the total pension
liability was 7.75%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate
^sumed that contributions from plan employees and employers will be made at
statutory contribution rates. Projected inflows from investment earnings were
calculated using the long-term assumed investment return of 7.75%. The long-term
investment rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of CERS proportionate share of net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate—The following table presents the net pension liability of the District,
calculated using the discount rates selected by the pension system, as well as what the
District's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a diseormt rate that
is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current

1% Discount

Decrease Rate 1% Increase

CERS 6.75% 7.75% 8.75%

District's proportionate share

ofnet pension liability 846,996 750,000 653,397

Pension plan fiduciary net position—detailed information about the pension plan's
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued financial reports of CERS.

NOTE 7 - Change in accounting principle and related changes to certain beginning
balances.

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 68, ''Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions" required retrospective application. Since the
District only presents one year of financial information, the beginning net position
was adjusted to reflect the retrospective application. The adjustment resulted in a
$748,791 reduction in begiiming net position on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position and an increase of $84,000 of deferred inflows of
resources - and $52,952 in deferred outflows of resources - District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date
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Martin County Water District
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

NOTE 8 - Risk management

The District is exposed to various risks of. loss related to illegal acts, torts,
theft/damage/ destruction of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and
natural disasters. To obtain insurance for workers' compensation, errors and
omission, and general liability coverage, the District purchased commercial insurance
coverage.

NOTE 9 - Subsequent events

The District has evaluated subsequent events through September 30, 2016, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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Martin County Water District
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

COUNTY EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

Districts' proportion of tfie net pension liability

District's proportionate share of the net pension liability

State's proportionate share of the net pension
liability associated with the District

Total

District's covered-employee payroll

District's proportionate share of the net pension
liability as a percentage of its
covered-employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

Reporting Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)

2015

(2014)

0.02%

$ 750,000

750,000

693,688

108.12%

66.80%

Note: Schedule Is intended to show information for the last 10 fiscal years. Additional years will be
displayed as they become available.

See the accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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Martin County Water District
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Year Ended December 31, 2015

2015 2014

COUNTY EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

Contractuaily required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractualiy
required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)

District's covered-employee payroll

District's proportionate share of the net pension liabiiity
as a percentage of It's covered-employee payroll

$ 104,892 $ 97,385

104,892 $ 97,385

$ . 693,688 $ 593,711

15.12% 16.40%

Note: Schedule is intended to show information for the last 10 fiscal years. Additional years will be displayed
as they become available.

See the accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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Martin County Water District
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Changes in terms -None

Changes in assumptions - None
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White & Associates, PSC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

1407 Lexington Road
Richmond, Kentucky 40475

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District
Inez, Kentucky

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standard issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of the enterprise fund of Martin County Water District (District),
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated September 30,2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
District's nitemal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances ofnoncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

White & Associates, PSC
Richmond, Kentucky
September 30, 2016
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MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

Year Ended December 31, 2015

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

What type of report was issued for the financial statements?

Were there significant deficiencies in internal control disclosed?
If so, was any significant deficiencies material (GAGAS)?

Was any material noncompliance reported (GAGAS)?

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

There were no findings.
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MARTIN COUNTY WATER DISTRICT .

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year Ended December 31,2015

There were no findings from the prior year.
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White & Associates, PSC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOLTNTANTS

1407 Lexington Road
Richmond, Kentucky 40475

September 30, 2016

To the Board of Commissioners of the Martin County Water District
Inez, Kentucky

We have audited the financial statements of the enterprise fund of the Martin County
Water District for the year ended December 31, 2015. Professional standards require that
we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted
auditing standards and, Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information
related to the plaimed scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated May 19, 2016. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects ofAccounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.
The significant accounting policies used by Martin County Water District are described
in Note 1 to the financial statements. We noted no transactions entered into by the
govermnental unit during the year for which there is a lack of atithoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in
the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and
current events and assumptions about fiature events. Certain accounting estimates are
particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because
of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly Ifom those
expected. The most sensitive estimate affecting the government wide financial statements
was the useful lives and residual values of capital assets:

Management's estimate of the useful lives and residual values of capital assets is
based on historical trends. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to
develop the useful lives and residual values of capital assets in determining that it
is reasonable ia relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to aecumulate all known and likely misstatements
identified during the audit, other than those that are elearly trivial, and communicate them
to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such
misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit
procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or in the
aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting,
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that
no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations fi-om management that are included in the
management representation letter dated September 30,2016.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some eases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing
and accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the governmental unit's
financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To

our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting
principles and auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the
governmental unit's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course
of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of Board of Commisssioners and the
Martin County Fiscal Court and management of the Martin County Water District and is
not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours.

White & Associates, PSC
Richmond, Kentucky
September 30, 2016
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Fire Department - Water Usage Report

KRS 278.170(3) 807 KAR 5:095 Section 9
Ally ciiy, couMiy, uiuan-couniy, ciiiJiier cuuiiiy, lire ptoieciioii umiiici, m vuiuiiLeer lire proiecuoii umumi ( ut;ei; iimy wmiumw waiei imiii me

water distribution svstem for fire orotection or trainino ourooses and faiis to submit the reouired reoort on water usaoe in a timeiv manner shaii

A non-reporting user's usage shaii be presumed to be 0.3 percent of the utiiity's totai water saies for the caiendar month.

Inez Fire Department Month

Year

January-December

2016

Martin County Water District

Date Location and/or Number

Reason

Operated

Gallons

Flowed

1/15/2016 2669 Big Elk Fire 10,000

1/20/2016 Coldwater Car/Fire 3,000

2/8/2016 645/40 Car/Fire 1,500

2/15/2016 Eden West Fire 3,000

3/18/2016 Eden West Fire 3,000

3/22/2016 Fitch Br Forest Fire 1,000

3/30/2016 Calioway Forest Fire 2,000

3/31/2016 Souty Milo Forest Fire 2,800

4/2/2016 Gods Promise Trail Forest Fire 1,000

4/17/2016 Rt 40 Blacklog Forest Fire 2,800

4/17/2016 Boone hollow Forest Fire 2,800

4/19/2016 Trace Fork Forest Fire 2,800

4/20/2016 Rt 645 Forest Fire 2,800

5/7/2016 Rt 40 Clifford Fire 3,800

5/22/2016 Davis Br Fire 3,800

6/4/2016 Little Blacklog Fire 2,800

6/18/2016 Little Blacklog Barn Fire 2,800

6/25/2016 Crum Br Fire 200

7/12/2016 Skeeze Ward Manor Car/Fire 1,000

7/12/2016 Yellow Creek Fire 1,800

7/26/2016 Nats Creek Fire 1,800

7/29/2016 New Rt 3 Car/Fire 1,000

8/1/2016 Preece Flollow Fire 3,800

8/2/2016 Ratliff town Fire 3,800

8/5/2016 Rt1714 Fire 1,800

9/1/2016 Coldwater Camp Br Fire 2,800

11/6/2016 Blacklog Rd Fire 3,800

11/8/2016 Preece Flill Car/Fire 1,000

11/11/2016 Flammond Loop Forest Fire 2,000

11/18/2016 Spence Br Forest Fire 2,000

11/19/2016 Jones Fork Forest Fire 3,800

12/16/2016 Little Blacklog Fire 2,000

Tested all hydrants 400,000

Total For the Year 484,300
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Fire Department - Water Usage Report

KRS 278.170(3) 807 KAR 5:095 Section 9
Any cuy, county, uman-coutiiy, cnaner coumy, me pioibaion uimiia, or voiuiiiesr me pioieamii umtiict ( uiiei) ina^ wiiimiaw waiei iiurn irie

water distribution svstem for fire orotection or trainino ourooses and fails to submit the reouired reoort on water usace in a timelv manner shall

A non-reporting user's usage shall be presumed to be 0.3 percent of the utility's total water sales for the calendar month.

Warfieid Fire Department Month

Year

January-December

2016

Martin County Water District

Date Location and/or Number

Reason

Operated
Gallons

Flowed

1/1/2016 Left fork Marrowbone Fire 1,800

1/5/2016 Big Elk Fire 2,800

1/18/2016 Long Br Fire 3,800

2/10/2016 Emily Creek Fire 3,800

2/29/2016 Big Br Fire 4,500

3/10/2016 Beauty Rd ForestFire 1,000

3/16/2016 Mt Sterling Car/Fire 1,800

3/20/2016 Little Peter Cave ForestFire 2,800

3/21/2016 Little Peter Cave ForestFire 2,800

3/21/2016 Little Peter Cave ForestFire 2,800

3/30/2016 Pigeon Roost Rd ForestFire 6,000

3/31/2016 Pigeon Roost Rd ForestFire 3,000

4/5/2016 Beauty Rd Fire 500

4/12/2016 Bone Hollow ForestFire 1,800

4/13/2016 Stone Coal Fire 1,800

4/19/2016 Rt1714 ForestFire 2,000

4/20/2016 N Wolf Creek ForestFire 2,000

4/24/2016 Talors Trailer Court Car/Fire 1,000

6/13/2016 Dempsey Fire 1,000

6/18/2016 Evans Hill Fire 1,000

7/17/2016 Holty Rd Fire 1,000

7/27/2016 Marrowbone Fire 1,800

8/3/2016 Evans Hill Car/Fire 1,000

8/5/2016 Rt1714 Fire 3,000

8/13/2016 Big Elk Fire 4,000

10/11/2016 Emily Creek Fire 4,000

10/24/2016 Little Elk of Hode Fire 4,000

10/27/2016 Jennins creek Fire 1,000

11/8/2016 Crum Fire 1,000

11/10/2016 Frog Pond Car/Fire 2,000

11/30/2016 Howell Rd Car/Fire 1,000

12/2/2016 Stone Coal Fire 2,000

Testing Hydrants 200,000

Total For the Year 273,800
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Martin County Water District
Valve Location Map
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